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STONE HARBOR BOARD OF EDUCATION

275 93" STREET STONE HARBOR, NJ 08247
PH #609-368-4596 X24 FAX #609-368-6545

STACEY LaROCCA-TRACY DR. RENEE MURTAUGH LINDA FIORI
Chief School Administrator Supervisor of Curriculum Business Administrator
& Instruction

October 21, 2016

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Stone Harbor School District
County of Cape May

Stone Harbor, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Borough of Stone Harbor
School District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, is hereby
submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects
and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and
results of operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities
have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections:
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section
includes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart and a list of
principal officials. The financial section includes the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, basic financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's
report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District
is not required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions
of the Single Audit Act, OMB Uniform Guidance, and State Treasury Circular
Letter 15-08 OMB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants and State Aid. However, the auditor's report on the internal control
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.



1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Borough of Stone Harbor School District is an independent reporting entity
as set forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Caodification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. All funds and account groups of
the District are included in this report. The Borough of Stone Harbor Board of
Education and the school district constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade
levels K through 4 and includes servicing Avalon students as tuition students to
the District. Students in grade levels 5 through 8 attend Avalon School District.
Additionally, it provides tuition for grades 9 through 12 to Middle Township High
School and to the Cape May County Special Services School District. These
include regular, as well as special education for handicapped students. The
District completed the 2015-2016 fiscal year with an enrolliment of 68 students,
which is 4 students below the previous year’s enroliment.

The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over
the last ten years.
Average Daily

Enroliment

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enrollment Change
2015-2016 68 (1.5)%
2014-2015 69 (6.8)%
2013-2014 74 (5.1)%
2012-2013 78 (1.3)%
2011-2012 79 5.3%
2010-2011 75 23.0%
2009-2010 61 (23.8)%
2008-2009 80 (4.8)%
2007-2008 84 (12.5)%
2006-2007 96 0.0%

2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Stone Harbor Borough is an affluent seashore community consisting primarily of
residential properties. The estimated 866 permanent, year round resident
population (2010 U.S. Bureau of Census, Population Division) swells to
approximately 25,000 during the summer season. There is no major industry
and very little room for growth in both the residential and business districts. Most
residential properties are used for income purposes (summer rentals).



3) MAJOR INIATIVES:

Students continued to score above the state and national averages. During the
2015-16 school year the district of Stone Harbor & Avalon continued a shared
instructional model for educating students on the island. Stone Harbor
Elementary School will educate all the K-4 students & Avalon Elementary School
will educate grades 5-8. We continue to align our curriculum syllabus K-8 with the
New Jersey State Department’s Common Core Content Standards and with the
Work Place Readiness Standards. Technology continues to play a supplemental
role in all academic areas.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Internal control is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2)
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by the
District management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is
responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary
controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the
voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the
general fund and the special revenue fund. Project-length budgets are approved
for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either
canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent
year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30, 2016.



6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting
principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds
and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in "Notes to
the Financial Statements", Note 1.

7) CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as
detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted
a cash management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public
funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are
secured in accordance with the Act.

8) RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including, but not limited to,
general liability, automobile liability, hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, and fidelity bonds.

9) OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting
firm of Ford Scott & Associates, LLC, CPAs, was selected by the Board. In
addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act, OMB Uniform
Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The auditor's report on
the general purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund
statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single
audit section of this report.



10) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Borough of
Stone Harbor Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal
accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our
financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and
accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Stacey LaRocca- Tracy Lenda Fioré

Stacey LaRocca-Tracy Linda Fiori
Superintendent Business Administrator
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Stone Harbor School District
County of Cape May, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Borough of Stone Harbor School District, Borough of Stone Harbor, New Jersey, as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and audit requirements as
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing and opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness



of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Borough of Stone Harbor School
District, Borough of Stone Harbor, New Jersey, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Required Supplementary Information identified in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Borough of Stone Harbor School District's basic financial statements.
The introductory section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule
of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance), the schedule of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB
15-08, and statistical information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The introductory section, combining statements, and individual non-major fund financial
statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), the schedule of state financial assistance
as required by NJ OMB 15-08, and statistical information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing

10



procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
the schedule of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08 is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 21, 2016 on our consideration of the Borough of Stone Harbor School District's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Borough of Stone Harbor School District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Gord, Scott & s4ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Wickael S. Gancia

Michael S. Garcia

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant

No. 2080

October 21, 2016
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Borough of Stone Harbor School District (“District”) annual
financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial
performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2016. Please read it in
conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s
financial statement.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position of the District increased compared to the prior year as a result
of an excess of revenues over expenses.

e The State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $66,153 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016 for the employer’s share of social security contributions.
The State of New Jersey also paid $168,969 in pension contributions and
retiree health coverage for TPAF members as calculated on their base
salaries on behalf of the District. This amount, which is not budgeted, is
included as both a revenue and appropriation in the financial statements.

e As indicated by New Jersey State Statutes, the unreserved fund balance of
the general fund is limited to 2% of the total general fund expenditures or
$250,000, whichever is greater. Any excess is required to be designated as
Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus and included in the next year’s
budget as budgeted fund balance. As of June 30, 2016 the District had
excess surplus of $223,824, of which $0 was required to be budgeted as a
revenue for the year ending June 30, 2017 and $223,824 is designated for
subsequent year budgets.

e During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the District's revenues were
approximately $8,750 more than total expenses in the fund financial
statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts — management’'s discussion and analysis
(this section), the basic financial statements, required supplementary information,
and an optional section that presents combining statements for special revenue,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds. The basic financial statements include two kinds of
statements that present different views of the District.

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that
provide both long-term and short-term information about the District’'s overall
financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on
individual parts of the District's government, reporting on the District's
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

» The governmental funds statements tell how general government
services like instruction were financed in the short term as well as what
remains for future spending.

12



> Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial
information about the activities the District operates like businesses,
such as the milk program.

» Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial
relationships — like the unemployment trust fund — in which the District
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the
resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in
the financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are
followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows how the
required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another.

Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements,
including the portion of the District's government they cover and the types of
information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management’s
discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the
statements.

Figure A-1
Major Features of Borough of Stone Harbor Board of Education’s
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
Fund Statements

Government Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
wide
Statements Funds Funds Funds
Scope Entire District The activities | Activities the Instances in
(except fiduciary | of the District District which the District
funds) that are not operates is the trustee or
proprietary or similar to agent for
fiduciary, such private someone else’s
as food businesses; resources, such
service and food service as payroll
student agency and
activities student activities.
Required Statement of net | Balance sheet | Statement of Statement of
financial position net position fiduciary net
statements Statement of position
Statement of revenues, Statement of
activities expenditures, revenues, Statement of
and changes expenses, changes in
in fund and changes fiduciary net
balances in net position position
Statement of
cash flows

13




Accounting Accrual Modified Accrual Accrual
basis and accounting and accrual accounting accounting and
measurement economic accounting and economic economic
focus resources focus and current resources resources focus
financial focus
resources
focus
Type of All assets and Only assets | All assets and | All assets and
asset/liability liabilities, both expected to | liabilities, both liabilities, both
information financial and be used up financial and short-term and
capital, and and liabilities capital, and long-term.
short-term and | that come due short-term
long-term. during the and long-term.
year or soon
thereafter; no
capital assets
included.
Type of All revenues and | Revenues for | All revenues | All revenues and
inflow/outflow | expenses during | which cash is and expenses during
information the year, received expenses, year, regardless

regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

during or soon
after the end
of the year;
expenditures
when goods
or services
have been
received and
payment is
due during the
year or soon
thereafter

regardless of
when cash is
received or
paid.

of when cash is
received or paid.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole
using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The
statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of
the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how they
Net position — the difference between the District's assets and
liabilities — is one way to measure the District’s financial health, or position.

have changed.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator
of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

14




To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional
non-financial factors such as changes in the Borough’s property tax base and
the condition of the District’s facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two
categories:

Governmental activities — most of the District's basic services are included
here, such as instruction, transportation, administration, and plant operations.
Property taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.
Business-type activities — the District charges fees to customers to help it
cover the costs of certain services it provides. The District’s milk fund program
is included here. The District also has an internal service fund which provides
for the Supervisor of Curriculum and Instruction. This fund is supported by
payments from the District and Avalon Board of Education.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s
most significant funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices
that the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for
particular purposes.

The District has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds — Most of the District's basic services are included in
governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets
that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left
at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance the District’'s programs. Because this information does
not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide
statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
governmental funds statement that explains the relationship (or differences)
between them.

Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges customers a fee are
generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the
government-wide statements, provide both long- and short-term financial
information. In fact, the District's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary
fund) are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows.

Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for other assets that -
because of a trust arrangement — can be used only for the trust beneficiaries.
The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are
reported in separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of

15



changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the
District’'s government-wide financial statements because the District cannot
use these assets to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net position. The District's governmental activities net position increased between
fiscal years 2016 and 2015 as a result of an excess of revenues over expenses. The
business-type activities net position remained the same.

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Current and other assets $1,051,750 1,042,474 1,077 1,077 1,052,827 1,043,551
Capital assets 2,771,109 2,420,762 2,771,109 2,420,762

Total assets 3,822,859 3,463,236 1,077 1,077 3,823,936 3,464,313
Deferred outflows of
resources 58,305 22,642 - - 58,305 80,947
Other liabilities 515,138 457,457 515,138 457,457

Total liabilities 515,138 457,457 - - 515,138 457,457
Deferred inflows of resources 43,194 63,454 - - 43,194 63,454
Net position

Net invested in capital assets 2,771,109 2,420,762 2,771,109 2,420,762

Restricted 780,486 758,704 780,486 758,704

Unrestricted (228,763)  (214,499) 1,077 1,077 (227,686) (213,422)

Total net assets $3,322,832 2,964,967 1,077 1,077 3,323,909 2,966,044

Net position of the District increased due to an excess of revenues over expenses.
Also, included in long-term liabilities are amounts due to be paid on compensated
absences and the unfunded pension liability.

As required by New Jersey Statutes, the unrestricted net position of the District are
not permitted to exceed the greater of $250,000 or 2% of total general fund
expenditures, after reductions for On-behalf TPAF pension and social security. Any
excess must be appropriated as budgeted fund balance in the subsequent years’
budget. As of June 30, 2016, the District had excess fund balance in the amount of
$223,824 of which $0 has been included in the 2016-2017 budget and the remaining
$223,824 will be included in the 2017-2018 budget.

Changes in net position. The total general fund revenue of the District increased
approximately $19,000 due to an increase in the miscellaneous revenue.
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Approximately 8.99% of the District's governmental funds revenue comes from the
State of New Jersey in the form of non-restricted federal and state aid. This aid is
based on the District’'s enrollment as well as other factors related to the District's
formula aid which is a relationship of the adequacy budget and the Borough’s
property values and income of the residents. The District expenses are primarily

related to instruction, administration, and plant operations.

2015

Amount Percentage

2,396,585 72.08%
413,381 12.43%
497,400 14.96%

15,667 0.47%
1,651 0.05%

2016

Amount Percentage
Property taxes $ 2,396,585  74.54%
Unrestricted Federal and State aid 289,107 8.99%
Tuition 484,050 15.06%
Operating grants and contributions 29,226 0.91%
Other 16,158 0.50%
Totals $ 3,215,126 100.00%

3,324,684  100.00%

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Governmental Activities

The following schedule summarizes the governmental and business-type activities of
the District during the 2016 and 2015 fiscal years:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenues
Program revenue
Charges for services $ 647,414 569,522 - - 647,414 569,522
State grants and entitlements 451,135 305,266 451,135 305,266
General revenues
Property taxes 2,396,585 2,396,585 2,396,585 2,396,585
State aid entitlements 211,978 357,266 211,978 357,266
Other 20,562 1,651 20,562 1,651
Total revenues 3,727,674 3,630,290 - - 3,727,674 3,630,290
Expenses
Instruction:
Regular 1,121,525 1,054,873 1,121,525 1,054,873
Special Education 149,805 160,655 149,805 160,655
Other Instruction 35,545 32,674 35,545 32,674
Support services:
Tuition 722,129 745,152 722,129 745,152
Student & instruction related 434,731 404,955 434,731 404,955
School administration services 93,040 98,702 93,040 98,702
General & business admin 179,487 149,288 179,487 149,288
Plant operations & maintenance 399,244 563,572 399,244 563,572
Pupil transportation 67,197 55,572 67,197 55,572
Internal service fund 163,364 72,122 163,364 72,122
Special Schools 3,742 - 3,742 -
Business-type activities - - -
Total expenses 3,369,809 3,337,565 - - 3,369,809 3,337,565
Increase/(Decrease)
in net assets 357,865 292,725 - - 357,865 292,725

Business-type Activities

Operating and non-operating revenues of the District's business-type activities
remained unchanged from the previous year and expenses also remained
unchanged. The milk program was discontinued in the 2013 fiscal year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As of the year end, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$1,026,029 which is approximately $8,750 higher than the beginning of the year.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As further explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements, annual appropriated
budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special revenue
funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and, beginning with the 2012-
2013 budget voter approval is no longer required if the budget meets certain statutory
requirements. Transfers of appropriations may be made by Board resolution at any
time during the fiscal year. The District is permitted to encumber funds throughout
the year for purchases ordered but not yet received. Any open encumbrances as of
June 30™ carry over to the next fiscal year and are added to the appropriation
reflected in the certified budget.

After adjusting total revenue reported on Exhibit C-1 for the Reimbursed TPAF Social
Security Contribution and on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, which are not
budgeted, the Districts actual revenue exceeded the budgeted revenue by
approximately $5,700. This is a result of less tuition students than anticipated, offset
by unanticipated miscellaneous revenue. Again, after adjusting for the Reimbursed
TPAF Social Security Contribution and on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, actual
expenditures were below the budgeted appropriations by approximately $214,000.

CAPITAL ASSET
Capital Assets

At the end of 2016, the District had invested $2.78 million in a broad range of capital
assets, including land, buildings, vehicles and machinery.

Governmental Activities Business-type Acticities Totals

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 015
Land $ 410,630 410,630 410,630 410,630
Construction in Progress - - - -
Buildings and Bldg
improvements 1,988,263 1,662,405 1,988,263 1,662,405
Machinery & equipment 372,216 347,727 372,216 347,727
Total $2,771,109 2,420,762 - - 2,771,109 2,420,762

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The student population in the District has fluctuated over the past 10 years, however
state aid has remained fairly constant despite a decrease in student population.

The District budget for the 2017 fiscal year includes required supplies and anticipated
contractual increases in salaries and employee benefits.
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CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to present users (residents, receiving districts, and
creditors) with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the
District’s accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional
financial information, contact the District’'s business administrator at 275 93 Street,
Stone Harbor, New Jersey, 08243.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of the district's
operation. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all activities as of June 30, 2016.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The district-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the district's
operation. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of the governmental and business-like activities as of June 30, 2016.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2016

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net

Due from Agency Fund

Due from other governments

Capital assets, net
Land and land improvements
Construction in Progress
Depreciable assets, net of depreciation

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURSES
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Net Pension Liability
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURSES
Deferred inflows related to pensions

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

EXHIBIT A-1

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 942,638 1,077 943,715
65,866 65,866
628 628
42,618 42,618
410,630 410,630
2,360,479 2,360,479
3,822,859 1,077 3,823,936
58,305 58,305
58,305 - 58,305
24,855 - 24,855
866 866
116,507 116,507
372,910 372,910
515,138 - 515,138
43,194 43,194
43,194 - 43,194
2,771,109 - 2,771,109
780,486 780,486
(228,763) 1,077 (227,686)
$ 3,322,832 1,077 3,323,909
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules
present more detailed information for the individual funds in a format that segregates
information by fund type. The statements are segregated as follows:

Governmental Funds - This section consists of the general special revenue and
capital project funds.

Proprietary Funds - This section consists of the milk program and the internal
service fund. These funds are operated in a manner similar to a private business
enterprise.

Fiduciary Funds - This section consists of the unemployment compensation insurance
trust fund, the student activity and payroll agency funds and the scholarship expendable
trust fund.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Tax levy receivable
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental receivable - state
Intergovernmental receivable - federal
Intergovernmental receivable - other
Other Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Excess surplus
Excess surplus - designated for subsequent
year's expenditures
Committed to:
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Emergency reserve account
Assigned to:
Encumbrances
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditures
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue fund
Capital Projects fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT B-1

of net position (A-1) is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current

period and therfore are not reported in the funds.

Total
Special Governmental
General Revenue Funds
$ 941,772 866 942,638
17,857 17,857
3,768 3,768
38,850 38,850
48,637 48,637
1,050,884 866 1,051,750
24,855 24,855
- 866 866
24,855 866 25,721
223,824 223,824
165,206 165,206
140,000 140,000
250,000 250,000
1,456 1,456
245,543 245,543
1,026,029 - 1,026,029
$ 1,050,884 866
2,771,109
(357,799)
(116,507)

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT B-2

Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects = Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Local tax levy $ 2,396,585 2,396,585
Interest 427 427
Tuition 484,050 484,050
Miscellaneous 15,731 15,731
Local sources 1,134 1,134
State sources 289,107 - 289,107
Federal sources - 28,092 28,092
Total Revenues 3,185,900 29,226 - 3,215,126
EXPENDITURES:
Current expense
Instruction 812,241 1,134 813,375
Special education instruction 96,661 96,661
Other instruction 25,431 25,431
Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition 504,248 12,416 516,664
Student & instruction related services 279,581 15,676 295,257
School administrative services 30,202 30,202
Other administrative services 117,898 117,898
Central services 31,756 31,756
Plant operations and maintenance 283,245 283,245
Pupil transportation 48,078 48,078
Unallocated benefits 544,738 544,738
Capital outlay 391,898 - 12,351 404,249
Special Schools 3,226 3,226
Total Expenditures 3,169,203 29,226 12,351 3,210,780
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 16,697 - (12,351) 4,346
Other financing sources (uses):
Increase in Capital Reserve (44,899) (44,899)
Transfer to Capital Reserve 45,000 45,000
Interest earned on Capital Reserve (101) (101)
Cancellation of Prior Year Payable 4,404 4,404
Transfer 6,371 (6,371) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 6,371 - (1,967) 4,404
Net change in fund balances 23,068 - (14,318) 8,750
Fund Balances, July 1 1,002,961 - 14,318 1,017,279
Fund Balances, June 30 $ 1,026,029 - - 1,026,029

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT B-3
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) $ 8,750

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the period.

Depreciation expense (122,034)
Capital outlays 472,381 350,347

In the statement of activies, certain operating expenses, e.g. pension expense are
measured under full accrual accounting. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
are reported on the amounts actually billed by the State.

District pension contributions 14,282
Cost of benefits earned, net of employee contributions (31,278)
(16,996)
In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences
(vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental
funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources
used (retired). When the earned amount exceeds the retired amount, the difference is reduction in
the reconciliation (-); when the retired amount exceeds the earned amount the difference
is an addition to the reconciliation (+). 15,764
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 357,865

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT B-4
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2016

Non Major Funds

Business-type Activities - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Milk Internal Service
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,077
Accounts receivable 17,229
Inventories
Total current assets 1,077 17,229
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets - -
Total assets 1,077 17,229
Liaibilities
Current liabilities
Interfund payable 17,229
Accounts payable - -
Total current liabilities - 17,229
Total liabilities - 17,229
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt - -
Unrestricted 1,077
Total net position $ 1,077 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT B-5

BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

Non Major Funds

Business-type
Activities - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities

Milk Internal Service
Fund Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:
Other revenue

163,364

Total Operating Revenues

- 163,364

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Cost of sales

111,298
52,066

Total Operating Expenses

- 163,364

Operating profit

Net loss before contributions and transfers

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning

1,077 -

Total net position - ending

$ 1,077 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT B-6
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

Non Major Funds

Business-type

Activities - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Milk Internal Service
Fund Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and others $ - 146,135
Payments to employees (111,298)
Payments for employee benefits (52,066)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities - (17,229)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Interfund Activity 17,229
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities - 17,229
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -
Balances - beginning of year 1,077 -
Balances - end of year $ 1,077 -
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Operating income $ - -
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to cash used by operating activities
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in Accounts Receivable (17,229)
Total adjustments - (17,229)
Net cash (used) by operating activities $ - (17,229)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT B-7

Scholarship Unemployment Agency
Fund Compensation Trust Fund
ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,105 39,807 6,473
Total Assets 2,105 39,807 6,473
LIABILITIES:

Payable to Student Groups 2,954

Payroll liabilites 2,891

Interfund Payable 628
Total Liabilities - - 6,473
NET POSITION

Held in trust for unemployment

claims and other purposes $ 2,105 39,807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXHIBIT B-8
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Plan member $ 1,573
Board
Total Contributions 1,573 -
Investment earnings:
Interest 16 -
Net investment earnings 16 -
Total additions 1,589 -
DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims 124
Total deductions 124 -
Change in net position 1,465 -
Net position—beginning of the year 38,342 -
Net position—end of the year $ 39,807 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Borough of Stone Harbor School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Borough of Stone Harbor School District is an instrumentality of the State of New
Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The Board consists of
elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent
is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Borough of Stone
Harbor School District (District) have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its
accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant accounting
policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY:

The Borough of Stone Harbor School District is a Type |l district located in the County of
Cape May, State of New Jersey. As a Type Il District, the School District functions
independently through a Board of Education. The board is comprised of five board
members and 1 representative from Avalon elected to three-year terms. The purpose of
the district is to educate students in grades K-8. The Borough of Stone Harbor School
District had an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2016 of 68 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)
the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the District is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the
District

there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

Y VVVVYV

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.
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Borough of Stone Harbor School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS:

The District’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the
District as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District’'s major funds).
Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as
either governmental or business type. The District's general and special revenue
activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's milk fund program is
classified as business-type activities. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.

In the governmental-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column,
(b) and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The
District's net positions are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net of
related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The District first
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of
each of the District’s functions and business-type activities (milk fund). The functions
are also supported by general government revenues (property taxes, tuition, certain
intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (regular instruction,
student & instruction related services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating grants
include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general
revenue (property taxes, tuition, interest income, etc.).

a. The District does allocate indirect costs such as depreciation expense,
compensated absences, On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, and
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and
the change in the District's net positions resulting from the current year’s activities.
Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide statements.

C. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues
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Borough of Stone Harbor School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification
within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the
governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are
summarized into a single column. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria
(percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund
category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major
funds. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements.
The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New Jersey
School Districts must report all governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund
meeting the GASB definition of a major fund. However, the criteria are applied to
proprietary funds.

The following fund types are used by the District:
1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a
description of the governmental funds of the District.

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

b. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for a specific purpose.

c. Capital project fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those finances
by Proprietary Funds.)

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Stone Harbor Board of Education has implemented GASB No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. In the fund financial statements,
governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance:

> Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because

they are either not spendable in form or are legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.
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> Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources
(creditors, laws of other governments, ect.) or by constitutional
provision or enabling legislation.

> Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes. Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions
passed by the Board of Education, the District's highest level of
decision making authority. = Commitments may be modified or
rescinded only through resolutions approved by the Board of
Education.

> Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a
specific purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or
committed fund balance. Under the District’'s policy, amounts may be
assigned by the Business Administrator.

> Unassigned — includes amounts that have not been assigned to
other funds or restricted, committed or assigned to a specific purpose
within the General Fund. The District reports all amounts that meet the
unrestricted General Fund Balance Policy described below as
unassigned:

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance
Sheet. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to have
been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or
unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers amounts to have been
spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds,
as needed.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,
changes in net positions, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector.
The following is a description of the proprietary funds of the District:

a. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a
fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is
financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has
third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital
costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges
based on a pricing policy designated to recover similar costs.
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b. Internal Service funds are used to account for activities that service multiple
funds or governmental agencies.

3. Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others
and therefore are not available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on
net positions and changes in net positions and are reported using accounting principles
similar to proprietary funds.

The District’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by
type (pension, private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being
held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments), private parties, pension
participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the
government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the
timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual:

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual:

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Available”
means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end.
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal
and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.
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E. FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase
and are stated at cost plus accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and
certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when purchased are stated at
cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

For the purpose of determining cash equivalents the District considers all investments
with an original maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of
financial institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of
permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit
public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (‘GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to
protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public
funds in a public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act.
Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and
national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All
public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of
Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their
deposits to the Governmental units.

2. Investments:

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair
value, (quoted market price or the best available estimate). Interest earned on
investments in the Capital Projects Fund is recognized in the District's General Fund.

3. Capital Assets:

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported
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at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital
outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all
assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Improvements 10-20 years

GASBS No. 34 requires the District to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets.
Infrastructure assets include roads, parking lots, underground pipe, etc. Neither their
historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been reported in the financial
statements. The District has included all infrastructure assets in the current fiscal year.

4. Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are
susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to
remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount certified, prior to the
end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue
(accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both measurable and
available. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or
current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue. In respect to grant
revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes
receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met
are reported as advances by the provider and unearned revenue by the recipient.
Program revenues, including tuition revenue are reported as reductions to expenses in
the statement of activities.

5. Expenditures:

Expenses are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are
reported in the period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period
purchased.

6. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as
vacation, sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that

are attributable to services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific
event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, is accrued as the
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employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future
services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are
rendered or in which such events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure
and fund liability in the fund that will pay for the compensated absences. The remainder
of the compensated absences liability is reported in the District-wide Financial
Statements as a Governmental Activity.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an
expense and liability of the fund that will pay for them.

7. Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or
transfers. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and
are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at
market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting
fund and reduces its related costs as reimbursement. All other interfund transactions
are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are
netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

8. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general,
special revenue and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office
for approval and, as long as the District budget is within State mandated CAPs, there is
no public vote on the budget. If the budget exceeds State mandated CAPs, the voters
have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the regular election held in
November. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting,
except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary
control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are
defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C. 6:23-2(g). Transfers of
appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal
year and are subject to two-thirds majority vote by the School Board and under certain
circumstances require approval by the County Superintendent of Schools. No material
transfers were made to/(from) budgetary line items during the year.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management
control device during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial
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differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted
accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of
the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as
noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP
in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures
and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.
Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP
basis financial reports.

9. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special
revenue fund, are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to
unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received
advances, are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry
will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation
reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the
current fiscal year end.

10. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2015-16 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been
determined.

11. Tuition Receivable

Tuition is received through an interlocal agreement negotiated annually with the Avalon
Board of Education

39



Borough of Stone Harbor School District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

12. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those results.

13. Allocation of Costs

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated
benefits to various programs based on the amended budget by program.

14. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and
Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/deductions from the
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
the TPAF and PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

F. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 74, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 30,
2016 establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans.
It is anticipated that this statement will not have any effect on the District’s financial
reporting.

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after
June 30, 2017. Although not determinable, the impact of this statement on the net
position of the entity is anticipated to be significant.

In August 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 77, “Tax Abatement Disclosure”. This statement is effective for fiscal
periods beginning after December 15, 2015, will not have any effect on the District’s
financial reporting.
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In December 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 78, “Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Pension Plans”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, will not have any effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In January 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 80, “Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2016, will not have any effect on the District’s financial
reporting.

In March 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 81, “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements”. This statement is effective
for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2016, will not have any effect on the
District’s financial reporting.

In March 2016, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 82, “Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No.73”. This statement is effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15,
2016, will not have any effect on the District’s financial reporting, however will affect the
disclosure of pension related items.

NOTE 2. INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2016, the District had no investments.

Interest Rate Risk. The district does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. However, New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits the
length of time for most investment to 397 days.

Credit Risk. New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits district investments to those
specified in the Statutes. The type of allowable investments are Bonds of the United
States of America or of the district or the local units in which the district is located;
obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days; government money market
mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government
investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The district places no limit on the amount the district
may invest in any one issuer.
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NOTE 3. CASH

Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The district’s policy is
based on New Jersey Statutes requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based
banking institutions that participate in the New Jersey Governmental Depository
Protection Act (GUDPA) or in qualified investments established in New Jersey Statutes
18A:20-37 that are treated as cash equivalents. Under the act, all demand deposits are
covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by
the District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA. However,
GUDPA does not protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholding or student
activity funds. As of June 30, 2016, $0 of the government’s bank balance of $1,063,781
was exposed to custodial credit risk.

NOTE 4. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Stone Harbor Board of
Education by the inclusion of $1 on October 11, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for
the use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve
account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund
annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the
Quality Assurance Annual Report (QAAR). Upon submission of the LRFP to the
department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating
funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board
resolution at year end (June 1 to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended
line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a
separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special
elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A 16:60-2. Pursuant to NJAC 6:23A-14.1(g), the
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of
uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP. The activity is shown as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1 $ 210,105

Interest Earned 101
Appropriated by
Resolution (45,000)

Ending balance, June 30 $ 165,206
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NOTE 5. MAINTENANCE RESERVE

New Jersey Statute 18A:7G-9 permits districts to accumulate funds for the required
maintenance of a facility in accordance with the Educational Facilities Construction and
Financing Act (EFCFA). The balance may be increased through an appropriation in the
annual general fund budget certified for taxes or a resolution of the Board at the June
meeting. This reserve may be used at any time during the year, by resolution, to
transfer to the required maintenance budget lines for use on required maintenance
activities for a school facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan.
Funds withdrawn from the maintenance reserve account are restricted for use on
required maintenance appropriations and may not be transferred to any other line-item
account. As of June 30, 2016 the District has reserved $140,000 for maintenance.

NOTE 6. FIXED ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, Disposals/ June 30,
2015 Additions  Adjustments 2016
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets that are not being
depreciated:
Land $ 410,630 410,630
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 410,630 - - 410,630
Bldg and bldg improve 2,823,016 93,994 2,917,010
Site improvements 86,965 274,595 361,560
Machinery and Equipment 993,001 103,792 27,830 1,068,963
Total at historical cost 3,902,982 472,381 27,830 4,347,533
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,892,850) (122,034) (27,830)  (1,987,054)
Total capital assets being depr,
net of accum depr 2,010,132 350,347 - 2,360,479
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $2,420,762 350,347 - 2,771,109
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Depreciation expense as charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular instruction $ 61,017
Special education 12,203
Student & instruction related services 18,305
School administrative expenses 12,203
General and business administration 12,203
Plant operations and maintenance 6,103

$ 122,034

NOTE 7. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
6/30/2015 Issued Retired 6/30/2016 one year

Governmental $

Activities

Other liabilities:

Compensated Absences

Payable 132,271 34,969 50,733 116,507 -

Governmental activities

long-term liabilities $ 132,271 34,969 50,733 116,507 -

NOTE 8. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees’
Retirement System or the Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plans which have been established by state statute
and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division).
According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both
Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate.
The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may
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be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton,
New Jersey, 08625 or the reports can be accessed on the internet at
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts_archive.htm.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January, 1955 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and
medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity
Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of
New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing
employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the
professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the
Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and
certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in January, 1955 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System is a
cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full
time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency
provided the employee is not required to be a member of another State-administered
retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement program (DCRP) was established as of July 1,
2008 under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (NJSA
43:15C-1 et seq). The DCRP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution
pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries with a tax-
sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability
coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by NJSA 43:15C-1 et seq.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter
115, P.L. of 1997 and N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by
State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for employee contributions of
7.06% of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers are required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The current TPAF
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rate is 8.32% and the PERS rate is 12.46% of covered payroll. The School District's
contributions to TPAF for the years ending June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were
$77,129, $56,115, and $42,599 respectively, and paid by the State of New Jersey on
behalf of the board. The School District’'s contributions to PERS for the years ending
June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $15,537, $13,209 and $14,200 respectively, equal
to the required contributions for each year.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the State of New Jersey
contributed $91,840, $89,085, and $69,845, respectively, to the TPAF for post-
retirement medical benefits on behalf of the Board. Also, in accordance with NJSA
18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $66,153, $72,548, $73,298
during the same fiscal years for the employer’s share of social security contributions for
TPAF members as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts, which are not
required to be budgeted, have been included in the financial statements, and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules as
revenues and expenditures.

Significant Leqislation

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011 made various changes to the manner in
which the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the Teacher’s Pension
and Annuity Fund (TPAF) operate and to the benefit provisions of those systems.

Chapter 78’s provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

e New members of the PERS and TPAF hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5
members) will need 30 years of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the
early retirement benefit without a reduction of 2 of 1% for each month that the
member is under age 65.

e The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the systems is increased
from age 63 to 65 for Tier 5 members.

e Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates
increase from 5.5% of annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1%
phased-in over 7 years. For fiscal year 2013, the member contribution rates
increased in October 2012. The phase-in of the additional incremental member
contribution rates for PERS members will take place in July of each subsequent
fiscal year.

e The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases
to current and future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as
permitted by this law.

e New employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided
health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the cost of coverage. The rate of contribution is determined based
on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The
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increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those
employed prior to Chapter 78’'s effective date with a minimum contribution
required to be at least 1.5% of salary.

e In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension
systems’ unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay method to a level
dollar of pay).

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-
administered retirement systems concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance
formula, the definition of compensation, the positions eligible for service credit, the non-
forfeitable right to a pension, the prosecutor’'s part of the PERS, and employer
contributions to the retirement systems.

Also, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010 changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members
of PERS and TPAF from the amount of annual compensation to the number of hours
worked weekly. Also, it returned the benefit multiplier for new members of PERS and
TPAF to 1/60™ from 1/55™, and it provided that new members of PERS and TPAF have
the retirement allowance calculated using the average annual compensation for the last
five years of service instead of the last three years of service. New members of PERS
and TPAF will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one employer.
Pension service credit will be earned for the highest paid position only. The law also
requires the State to make its full pension contribution, defined a 1/7"" of the required
amount, beginning in fiscal years 2012.

Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary
disability retirement for new members of the PERS and TPAF with disability insurance
coverage similar to that provided by the State to individuals enrolled in the State’s
Defined Contribution Retirement Program.

Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 implemented certain recommendations contained in the
December 1, 2006 report of the Joint Legislative Committee on Public Employee
Benefits Reform; established a DCRP for elected and certain appointed officials,
effective July 1, 2007; the new pension loan interest rate became 4.69% per year, and
an $8.00 processing fee per loan was charged, effective January 1, 2008. The
legislation also removed language from existing law that permits the State Treasurer to
reduce employer pension contributions needed to fund the Funds and Systems when
excess assets are available.

NOTE 9: Public Employees Retirement System

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $372,910 for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
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by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’'s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the Districts proportion was
0.00166121570%, which was an increase of 3.68% from its proportion measured as of
June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $16,996.

At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expended and actual experience $ 8,896
Changes of assumptions 40,048
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 5,996
Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 9,361 37,198
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 14,282
Total $ 72,587 43,194

$14.282 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date (June 30, 2015) will
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended
June 30,
2017 $ 2,825
2018 2,825
2019 2,825
2020 4,240
2021 2,396
Total $ 15,111
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2015 measurement date was determined by
an actuarial valuation of July 1, 2014, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2015. The
total pension liability for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014 This actuarial valuation used the following
assumptions, applied to all period in the measurement:

Inflation rate 3.04%
Salary increases:
2012-2021 2.15% - 4.40% (based on age)
Thereafter 3.15% - 5.40% (based on age)
Investment rate of return:  7.90%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female
Mortality Tables (setback 1 year for males and females) for service retirement and
beneficiaries of former members with adjustments for mortality improvements from the
base year of 2012 based on Projections Scale AA. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality
Tables (setback 3 years for males and setback 1 year for females) are used to value
disabled retirees.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2011. It is likely
that future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that
actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be
higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the larger the
impact on future financial statements.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.9% at June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions
and Benefits, the board of trustees, and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of
return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in
the following table:
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Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 5.00% 1.04%
U.S. Treasuries 1.75% 1.64%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 1.79%
Mortgages 2.10% 1.62%
High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.03%
Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 3.25%
Broad US Equities 27.25% 8.52%
Developed Foreign Equities 12.00% 6.88%
Emerging Market Equities 6.40% 10.00%
Private Equity 9.25% 12.41%
Hedge Funds/Absolute Return 12.00% 4.72%
Real Estate (Property) 2.00% 6.83%
Commodities 1.00% 5.32%
Global Debt ex US 3.50% 0.40%
REIT 4.25% 5.12%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.90% as of June 30,
2015. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.9%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.80% as of
June 30, 2015, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa
or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the average of the
last five years of contributions made in relation to the last five years of actuarially
determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2033, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate.

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participated employers
as of June 30, 2015, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as
what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:
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1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(3.90%) (4.90%) (5.90%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 449,900 372,910 308,470

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued PERS financial report.

NOTE 10. Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the
District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net
pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proprotionate share of the net pension liability $ -

State's proprotionate share of the net position liability
associated with the District 6,560,243

Total $ 6,560,243

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 and the total pension
liability to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of that date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2015, the District’'s proportion was 0.00%, which was no
change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of $344,780
and revenue of $344,780 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2016, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to TPAF from the following sources:
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expended and actual experience $ 33,341 1,976
Changes of assumptions 747,335
Net difference betweenn projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 55,567
Changes in proportion and differences between District

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 141,923
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 55,782
Total $ 978,381 57,543

$55,782 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
district contributions subsequent to the measurement date (June 30, 2015) will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended
June 30,

2017 $ 101,621
2018 101,621
2019 101,621
2020 155,671
2021 131,752

Thereafter 272,770
Total $ 865,056

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial
valuation was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014, which was rolled
forward to June 30, 2015. This actuarial valuation used the following assumptions,
applied to all period included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate 2.50%

Salary increases

2012-2021 Varies based on experience
Thereafter Varies based on experience
Investment rate of return 7.90%
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Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males
or Females, as appropriate with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale
AA from the base year of 2000 until the valuation date plus 15 years to account for
future mortality improvement. Post-retirement mortality improvements for non-disabled
annuitants are projected using Scale AA from the base year of 2000 for males and 2003
for females until the valuation date plus 7 years to account for future mortality
improvement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014 valuation were based on the results
of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2012.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.90% at June 30, 2015) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions
and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of
return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimated ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in
the following table:
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Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return.
US Cash 5.00% 53.00%
US Government Bonds 1.75% 1.39%
US Credit Bonds 13.50% 2.72%
US Mortgages 2.10% 2.54%
US Inflation-Indexed Bonds 1.50% 1.47%
US High Yield Bonds 2.00% 4.57%
US Equity Market 27.25% 5.63%
Foreign Developed Equity 12.00% 6.22%
Emerging market equities 6.40% 8.46%
Private Real Estate Property 4.25% 3.97%
Timber 1.00% 4.09%
Farmland 1.00% 4.61%
Private equity 9.25% 9.15%
Commodities 1.00% 3.58%
Hedge Funds - Multi Strategy 4.00% 4.59%
Hedge Funds - Equity Hedge 4.00% 5.68%
Hedge Funds - Distressed 4.00% 4.30%

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.13%
as of June 30, 2015. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.90%, and a municipal bond
rate of 3.80% as of June 30, 2015, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal
Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an
average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on
the average of the last five years of employers’ contributions. Based on those
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2027. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments through 2027, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected
benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate.

The following presents the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 4.13% as well as what the District’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage point lower (3.13%) or 1-percentage point higher (5.13%) than the
current rate:
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1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(3.13%) (4.13%) (5.13%)

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ - - -

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued TPAF financial report.

NOTE 11. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, Chapter 384 and P.L. 1990 Chapter 6 required Teachers’ Pensions and
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS),
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who
retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L.
2007 c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical
benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension
plans for funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State
employees and educational employees. As of June 30, 2015, there were 107,314
retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the State contributed $1.25
billion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the
State in accordance with P.L. 1994 c. 62. Funding for post-retirement medical benefits
changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year
1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢.126, which
provides employer paid health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit
Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years of
service. The State paid $214.1 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 19,056 eligible
retired members in Fiscal Year 2015.

NOTE 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the
entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future
years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators
are as follows:

Lincoln Investment Planning
Travelers Insurance Company
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NOTE 13. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting
for Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to
services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the
control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the
benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the
District’'s personnel policies. Unused sick leave may be accumulated and carried
forward to subsequent years. Upon retirement for those who have not less than fifteen
(15) years of service in the District, the District shall pay the employee for unused sick
leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the various employee unions.
Vacation days not used during the year may only be carried forward with approval from
the Superintendent.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities
are greater than one year should be reported in two components — the amount due
within one year and the amount due in more than one year.

NOTE 14. LITIGATION

From time to time, the District is a defendant in legal proceedings relating to its
operations as a school district. In the best judgment of the District's management, the
outcome of any present legal proceedings will not have any adverse material affect on
the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 15. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund — Of the $1,026,029 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2016, $1,456
is reserved for encumbrances; $223,824 is reserved as excess surplus in accordance
with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7; $165,206 has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account;
$140,000 has been reserved in the Maintenance Reserve Account. $250,000 has been
reserved in the Emergency Reserve Account and $245,543 is unreserved and
undesignated.

NOTE 16. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, C.73 (S1701), the
designation for Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus is a required calculation.
New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the
fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at
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June 30, 2016 is $223,824, of which $0 has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017.

NOTE 17. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of June 30, 2016, an interfund remained on the various balance sheets of the
Borough of Stone Harbor Board of Education.

General Fund:

Agency Fund $ 628

Internal Service Fund 17,229
Internal Service Fund

General Fund 17,229
Agency Fund:

General Fund 628

$ 17,857 17,857

Interfunds were created throughout the year due to short term borrowings to cover cash
flow needs in the various funds. A permanent transfer in the amount of $6,371 was
made from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund to refund the local portion of
the capital project previously transferred by the General Fund. The fund financial
interfunds were eliminated in the governmental-wide statements.

NOTE 18. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance — The District maintains commercial insurance
coverage for property, liability, student accident and surety bonds. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016 the District did not incur claims in excess of their coverage
and the amount of coverage did not significantly decrease.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance —The District has elected to fund
its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit
Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the School is required to reimburse the New
Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged
to its account with the State. The School is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the School's
expendable trust fund for the current and prior year:
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Fiscal Employee Interest on Amount Ending

Year Contributions Investments Reimbursed Balance
2015-2016 $ 1,573 $ 16 $ 124 $ 39,807
2014-2015 1,640 16 - 38,342
2013-2014 1,625 - 6,082 36,686

Worker's Compensation Fund —The Board currently maintains traditional insurance for
its worker’s compensation coverage.

NOTE 19. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The District is heavily reliant on local property taxation to fund District operations.
Property taxes funded 75% of the Districts 2015-2016 governmental operations.

NOTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events through October 21, 2016, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued, and no items were identified
that require disclosure.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

The budgetary comparison schedules consist of the comparison of anticipated
revenues and budgeted expenditures to actual results for the general and the
special revenue funds.




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



622 L1E'e2 9rs5'eT 0€T 9TV'ee

005 005 - 00S

T 05£'9S 1GE'9S ¥62'9 /50'0S

¥88'TT 1S2'2T vT've (659'T) 008'Ge

052 052 052

- 881'85S 881'855 (866'ct) 981'209

0T. 80T'9TT 8T8'9TT 818'9TT

168'0v¢ 006'G8T‘S 6¥0'G76'C - 60'G76'C

¥¥9'GEC 101'682 £oY'eS - €9Y'€S

€GT'99 €GT'99 -

696'89T 696'89T -

zes 22e'tT 00L (6T2'®) 6T6'E

- Z8L'6T Z8L'6T Z8L'6T

- ¥26'9 ¥26'9 6T2'S G0L'E

- 118'C 118'C L18°C

- ovez'se ove'se ove'se

102'S £6.'968'C 985'768'C - 985'T68'C

TEL'ST TEL'ST -

- 005'88¢ 005'88¢ 005'88€

(0s8'01) 0SG'S6 00%'90T 007'90T

9ze Ykay 10T 10T

- G85'96£'C G85'96£'C G85'96€'C ¢

[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(1anQ)/18pUn [eud 186png reuiuo

Yum aouelLRA

$92IAI8S paseyaind Jayi0
S32IAI3S [BDIUYD3) paseyaind
S30IAISS [BUOITRINPD
/feuoissajoid paseyaind
uonoNISUI I} SaLefes J1aYi0

:uononJisul painguisipun - swelboud renbay

slayoeal Jo sauees
:uonanJisul swoy - sweiboud rejnbay
8 -9 sspelo
G - T sepelo
uapehiapupy/jooyasaid
:S1ayoea Jo salees
:uonanuisu| - sweiboud rejnbay
:@suadx3 waun)d
'S3INLIANIdX3

SONUaNlYy [e10 |

S$92JN0S vje]s |elo

(pa12bpng-uou) suonngliuo)

AIN2as [e100S 4 d1 pasinguiay
(pa12bpng-uou) suonnguo)

uoisuad 4vd.l Jeysq uo

18Yy10

ply uoneuodsuel]

pIv swisnlpy

piv Alinoas

plv uoneonp3 [eads

:$92IN0S 91e1S

$82.N0S [e20] [e10]

snoaue||adsIN
S,\v37 J18y1o - uonint
s[enplAlpul - uoninl
pauJea 1salalu|
AA9| xe1 8207
:$924N0S [2207]
‘SINNINIY

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ aun( papus IesA [edsiH 8y} 10}

pun4 |elauso)

a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng

10141S1d TOOHOS 40ddVH IANOLS 40 HONOYO4d

59



00T'0T 8¥2'v0S 8YE'vTS (oor'T) 8¥/'GTS
- v¥8°2e v¥8'2e ¥v8°2e
00T'0T YOv'TLY ¥0S'T8Y (oov'T) ¥06'287
/GE'TY £EE'vE6 069'S/6 (2£6'98) 129'290'T
€92'y Z19'T G/8'S - G/8'S
000°'T 000°'T - 000'T
£€9zZ's 219'T G/8'v - G/8'y
000'S 6T8'cZ 678'82 - 618'8¢C
000'S - 000'S - 000'S
- 6T8'€Z 6T8'cZ 618'ce
G99°'T T99'96 92£'86 - 9z£'86
G99°'T T99'96 92£'86 - 9z£'86
00T - 00T 00T
G9G'T 569 092'2 (ov2) 00S'2
- 996'G6 996'G6 ove 92.'S6
627'0E Tv2'218 0.9'Z¥8 (2£6'98) 109'626
9/2'8 ¥0G'S 08L'€T (00S'T) 082'ST
- - (o00'0T) 000'0T
6.5'8 JARA% 96.'8% (roz'9g) 000's8
[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(13n0)/18pun [eud 186png [eulblo

Yum aouelLRA

uononJsul - sainypuadxa paIguIsIpun L1011

rejnBay - 1911SIg |00YIS ‘20A Aluno) - uoning
s|jooyas Aeq Bay » dSSD 03 uoning
[e1oads - arels ayy
uIysm s,y Jaylo 03 uomny
re|nba. - ayels ay)
uIyHm s,y Jaylo 0} uomny
-:uonaonuisuj
- salnypuadxa painguisipun

uononnsu| - e10L
uononsul - SanAloe
Je|na11IN209 palosuods |00yds 101
sleualelN pue sajddns
saleres
:uonoNJISUl - SalIAOR JB|Nd1LLIN209 pajosuods |00ydS
13)U82 32JN0S3J/WI00) 82IN0Sa [10 ]
salddns ressuso
slayoeay Jo salees
-:uononuisul - [eIpaway/s|IINS sised
uonoNJISUl - uoireanpa [ervads [e1o ]
13)U82 32JN0S3I/WO00) 821N0S3a [10 ]
SY00qIXa 1
salddns [elauas
slayoeal Jo salees
1191U2 92IN0STY/WO0. 92IN0SY
sweiboud sejnbai [ejo
s109[qo Jauy1o

SY00qIXa L
salddns [elauas

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ aun( papus IesA [edsiH 8y} 10}

pun4 |elauso)

a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng

10141S1d TOOHOS 40ddVH IANOLS 40 HONOYO4d

o
(]



€e9 198 00S'T - 00G'T

eeT 198 000°'T - 000'T

005 - 005 - 005

T27'6 69.T 06T'TT - 06T'TT

127'6 69T 06T'TT - 06T'TT

¥99 L9t'9. 1€T'2L 962 Ge8'9.

- - - (000'2) 0002

- z18's z18's ZIL's 00T

- §59'2L §59°2L SYS'8T OTT'¥S

799 - 799 (196'6T) G29'02

8y Gee'sT €8¢'8T (962) 6.9'8T

T TES'T 25T 25T

Ly 980'6 €eT'6 (828'T) T96'0T

- 8TL'.L 8TL'L - 8TL'.L

[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(13n0)/18pun [eud 186png [eulblo

Yum aouelLRA

aouepIng
- $80IAI8S 1oddns Jay)o - sainypuadxa paINguLIsIpun 2101

sleuarew pue salddns
S92IAI8S Y23} pue 'joud paseyaind Jayi0
aoueping
- s921n8s Woddns 1ayiO - salnypuadxa panguisipun

S90IAIBS AleulpIoRIXa -
$821AI8S 1oddns Jayo - saunypuadxa paINgLISIpun 210

S0IAISS [RUOINRINPS - [euOISSaj0Id paseydind
e1s [euoissajoud Jaylo Jo salefes

:S92IAI8S Areuipioenxs -

:$801AI8S 1oddns Jayio - saunypuadxe pangLisipun

S82IAIBS pale[al - SuapnIs
- $80IAI8S 1oddns Jay)o - sainypuadxa paInguLIsIpun [e1o1

sleualeN pue salddns
S92IAISS [eUONBINPS [euoIssajold paseyaind
:S9JIAISS palejal - Sjuapnis
- s991n8s Woddns 1ayiO - salnypuadxa panguisipun

S$80IAIBS Y1[eay - sainypuadxa painguisipun [e1o|

sleuarew pue salddng
$992InI8s paseyaind Jayio
S92IAISS [B21UY29)
pue jeuoissajoid paseyaind
saleres
:S9IIAISS U)feaH - sainipuadxa painguisipun

3I0M [B120S % 8ouepuaNe - sainipuadxa painguisipun [e1o |

$82IAIBS paseyaind J18Yyio
S82IAIBS [22IUY28]
pue [euoissajoid paseyaind
sallees
3O [BI00S 79 8ouepUaNY - Sainipuadxe pangLIsipun

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ aun( papus JesA [edsld ay) Jo)
pun4 [ei1aus
a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng
101d1S1d TOOHOS 40 ddVvYH ANOLS 40 HONOdJ0o4d

1
©



$992INI8S [euolssajoid paseyaind Jayio
S99} Ipny

s92IAIaS [eba

saleres

:uonensiuiwpe [eisuab - seslnles uoddng - sainpuadxa paiNguIsIpun

$80IAI8S Buiures Jeis euononnsul - sainypuadxa panguIsipun 2101

sleuarew pue salddng

$921nI8s paseyaind Jayio

S92IAIBS [B21UY23) pue [euolssajold saseyaind Jayi0
S92IAI8S [euoleaNnpa “joid paseyaind Jayli0

sa0IAIas Buluren eis uononJisul - sainpuadxa painguisipun

Areiqy

[00YDS/SDIAISS BIPBW [RUOINRINPS - SaInpuadxa panguisipun [e1o ]

sleuarew pue salddns

$9921nI8s paseyaind Jayio

S92IAISS [B21UY2I3) pue [euoissajold paseyaind
slojeulploo) ABojouyda] Jo sauees

saleres

:Arelqi| |00YIS/S82IAISS RIPSW [eUONEBINPS - Sainipuadxe pangLIsIpun

S82IAIBS UOIONASUI
10 JawaAoidwi - sainipuadxa panguisipun [e10 |

$193[00 18YI0

sleuarew pue salddns

$92IAI8S Y23} pue 'Joud paseyaind Jayi0
S92IAISS [eUONEBINPS [euoIssajold paseyaind
Jels joid 1sylo Jo sslejes

uononusu| Jo Josiniadns Jo salefes

:S82IAIBS UONONASUI |0 JuswaAoldw| - sainipuadxa painguisipun

T 8TE'LE 6TE'LE 98T €eT'LE
- 00.'L 00.'L 002 00G'2
T 860'vE 660'7E ¥66'TE S0T'C
- 1,272 1/2'T2 - T/2'T2
T.E'Y €09'8T v16'22 (6TY) €6£'€C
005 - 005 - 00§
062 012'v 00S'v - 00S'y
- £6E'CT £6'€T €6E'ET
T8S'E 000'T 18S'Y (6TY) 000'S
288'T 092'€S Z1T'ss ¥5.'9 8Ge'8y
TP 9TG'8 /SS'8 (1) 820'6
088 088 (ozT'T) 000'2
18 6.1'TE 098'TE (0z9'¢) 08¥'se
- - (000'T) 000'T
058 596'CT GT8'ET 596'CT 0S8
vTL'Z wT'LL GG8'6. (zer'y) 182'78
ocy vTE 052 - 0S.
5144 - 8y (zso'L) 00S'.2
628 'L 0.2'8 (t21'2) Tv¥'0T
- S0L'v S0L'v S0L'Y
000'T 000'T - 000'T
T T899 28979 98 96579
859'8 6ET'EE 16Ty (TT8'TD) 80€'ey
- T96'C 196'C T96'C
859'8 Ive'Ve ¥00'€€ (te5'2) Geg'se
- ze8's ze8's 020'T 218'y
[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(13n0)/18pun [eud 186png [eulblo

Yum aouelLRA

swea | ApnS plIyYD - SUspNIs
- s901AI8s 1oddns Jayjo - sainyupuadxa paInguIsIpun e1o 1

$82IAIBS Y291 pue ‘Joid paseyaind 1ay10
S90IAIBS [RUOINRINPS [euoissalold paseydind
SjuBISISSE [201I9[0 pUB S8LIR]BIISS |0 Saliees
‘wea] ApnIs piyo - siuapnis
- saoIAI8s 1oddns Jaylo - sainpuadxa panguIsipun

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ aun( papus JesA [edsld ay) Jo)
pun4 [ei1aus
a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng
101d1S1d TOOHOS 40 ddVvYH ANOLS 40 HONOdJ0o4d

62



- 0eL'¥T 0eL'vT (022) 000'ST
T ¥80'8 G80'8 G80'S 000°E
- TS6'€E TG6'EE oarT's 50882
- 099'GZ 099'GZ 099 000'S¢
€T 890'ce Ive'ee (9v0's) 182'8¢€
T TET'09 ZET'09 808'y ¥2'as
T69'€h Zr.l'8s €ev'20T (8eS'v2) T.6'92T
00S'v - 00S'v - 00S'y
GES'TE zes'ey 190'7. (8e5'v2) S09'86
959', 0T2'9T 998'cZ - 998'ce
822'T 95/'T¢ ¥86'2¢ 092 vzeze
052 - 052 052
002 002 002
8TT Z81'L 00¢g'. 00T 00Z'.L
099 v.5'v2 vez'se 099 v.5'v2
€8T'T z0z'0oe G8e'Te (Lz2) ZrT'e
ove 0TV 05, - 0S.
YA - €eT (2z2) 0S8
0zL o€ 052 - 0S.
- 29.'62 29.'62 29L'62
6 868'LTT 266°'LTT 80€'.LE ¥89°08
- SZr'e SZr'e SZv 000°C
ve 9T 0S (052'T) 008'T
- 052 052 052 -
0z 299'C 289'C ¥9.L'T 816
T Slv'L 9/t 692'C L02'S
L€ - L€ (g9v) 00S
- £5e'y £6e'y £5e'C 0002
- oce ose 08 052
[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(13n0)/18pun [eud 186png [eulblo

Yum aouelLRA

salddns [elauas

$99INI8S paseyaind snoaue|[29sIA

aoueInsu|

S92IAI9S 9oUBURUIRW pue Jredal ‘Buiues|d
S92IAISS [B21UYI3) pue [euoissajold paseyaind
saleres

:$801AI8S Jue(d JO 8dURUBIUNRW pue UoeladO - sainipuadxe pangLIsIpun

Auadoud [00y2s Jo aourUBIURW - SaIN)PUadXe PaINgLISIPUN 2101

sleuarew pue sajddns
aoueUaUreW pue Jredas ‘Buiues|d
saleres
:Auadoud jooyos Jo asuruUaUIRI - SaInpuadxa paingLIsipun

S80IAIBS [BAUSD - Sain)ipuadxa painguIsIpun 1ol

sleuarew pue salddns
$99IAI9S paseyaind snoue||eosin
S92IAISS [B21UY23) paseyaind
S92IAI8S [euoIssajoid paseyaind
S92IAISS [eNIUBD - SaJnlpuadxa painqguisipun

uolrelisiulipe |00Yds sa2IAIes 1oddns - sainipuadxa panguisipun [e10 |

s109[qo Jaui0
sleuarew pue sajddns
$9921nI8s paseyaind Jayio
S92IAIBS "YI9] pue euoissajold paseyaind
SJUB]SISSE [BI1I9]0 pUR [eLIRIaII8S JO Salle[es
:uoneJIsuILPe |00yds sadlnIas uoddns - sainypuadxa painguisipun

uonensiuiwpe
[esauab - saainias uoddns - sainypuadxa painglisipun [e1o |

s99) pue sanp diysiequaw 30g
sain)puadxa snoaue|[a9sIN

saliddns Bunaay/Bulurel] asnoH-u] 309
sleuarew pue salddng

s92IAI8s paseyaind 1ay10

sa2IAIes paseyaund Jaylo 309
auoyda|ay/suoneaiunwwo)

S92IAIBS [B2IUYD3] paseyaind

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ aun( papus IesA [edsiH 8y} 10}

pun4 [ei1aus
a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng

10141S1d TOOHOS 40ddVH IANOLS 40 HONOYO4d

63



(606'02) 6107112 0.T'€S.'C (v¥5'69) ¥1.'228'C

(992'29) 97/'6E8'T 08Y'LLL'T £65'LT 180'09.°T

(zzt'see) zzer'see - - -

(€5T'99) €GT'99 -

(696'89T) 696'89T -

8589/ 9T9'60E ¥.¥'98¢ (967'8) 0/6'76€

8v9'y GG8'ET €0G'8T (L6v'T) 00002

00T'S 006'€ 000'6 - 000'6

16115 §6.1'2¥C Z65'00€ (82£'1) 0./6'20€

v.v'E 968'1T 0.€'8T (oeT) 00S'8T

- 229'C 229'C 229 0002

0S€'Y /€S'ST /88'6T (eTm) 000'02

68T TT0'9T 00S'.T - 00G'.T

St 8/0'8Y €21'8y TTL'S AR e

[ 788 126 (€25'T) 00S'2

- 25902 25902 0ze'e zee'stT

- clv'y Slv'y €lv'e 0002

T 8ev'vT 6EY' VT Ll 29e'vT

- €0T'9 €0T'9 88 G109

T 825'T 625'T 9ze €02'T

962'TT £05'v2e 66.'GEC €80T 9T¥'see

9GT'T ¥¥8'8¢ 000°'0% - 000°0%

596'6 GE0'0T 00002 - 000'02

[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(13n0)/18pun [eud 186png [eulblo

Yum aouelLRA

:Aepno rended

asuadxa jualing [e10 ]
salnjipuadxa painguisipun g1
suonnQgLIuoI Jeyag-uo elo |

(pa12bpng-uou) suonnguo)
A1IN08S [e100S 4V d L pesinquisy

(pa12bpng-uou) suonngluo)
uolsuad 4vd.L Jeysq uo

sujauag aakojdw3 uononnsu| welbold renbay eiol

sujauaq aakojdwa 1ay10
juswiasINquiial uong
slysueq YyesH
uonesuadwod S,uswdIoON
uonesuadwod uswAojdwaun
SY3d - SuUonRNQLIU0I JuswWaINal J1ayl0
A1IN23s [e100S

Sjjauag paredo|eun

$80IAIBS Uoieuodsuel) JUBpNIS sainpuadxe paINguUIsIpun 210

21lgnd uou - (nal| ul apre) - SaJIAIBS Paldeu0D
sjuawaaibe julof

(yas % awoy "13Qq) SIJINIBS PajoRIU0D
slopuan - (Jooyas pue

awoy Usamiaq uey} Jayio) SadIAIaS paloesuod

S92IAISS [e21UYI3] pUe "Joid paseydind Jaylo
aljignd-uou

uoneuodsuel |idnd loj salees
rejnBa. - (Jooyas pue awoy usamiag)

uoneuodsuel |idnd loj salees

:S92IAI9S UoleLodSURI) JUBPN]S - SaINjpuadxa painguisipun

saoIn8s ueld Jo
aoueUBlURW pue uonelado - sainpuadxe paINgLISIpUn 2101

(Anouosle) Abisug
(seb [einyeu) ABiau3

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ |dunr papua Iea\ [edslH 8y} 1o}
pun4 [ei1aus
a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng

10141S1d TOOHOS 40ddVH IANOLS 40 HONOYO4d

64



(z.v'9) T.€'9 (tot) - (tot)

- (tot) (tom) (o)

(000'st) 000'Sy

668777 (668't1) - -

(t2€£'9) T.€'9 -

¥61'022 1699T (L67'€02) (000'st) (L6%'8ST)

(259'02) £02'69T'E ovS'8yT'E 000'Sy 9¥G'€0T'S

152 9zz's LIV'S Yo't €102

152 9zz's LIV'S Yor'T €10'C

052 - 052 052

T 9zz's 122's Yor'T €9/'T

T 868'T6E 668'T6E 080'€TT 618'8.2

T 0¥9'S0E T9'S0€ 228'9¢ 618'8.2

- ¥99'¢ ¥99'¢ - ¥99°¢

T G6G'V.2 96G'7.2 (659) GGT'G/2Z

- 182 18¢€'22 18€'22 -

- 852'98 852'98 852'98 -

- 852'98 852'98 852'98 -

[en1oy 011abpng euiq4 [enioy 19b6png siajsuel | 196png
(13n0)/18pun [eud 186png [eulblo

Yum aouelLRA

sasn Buioueul 1ay1o [e101

a|qenladal Jeak Joud Jo uone(@aue)d

anlasay [ended 01 usodaq 1sa4alu|

anIasay [euded wouy Jajsuel |

aNIasay eude) ul asealdaq

‘Ul slaysue bunelado
(sasn)/sa2inos Buloueuld 18y

salnypuadxa (Japun) Jano
sanuanal Jo (Aoualolap) ssaaxg

sainypuadx3 [e1oL
s|0oy9s [e10ads [e10]
UoIdNJISUI - |00YIS JBWWNS [810 |
salddns [elauas
slayoeal Jo salees
uonoNIsU| - [00YaS JBWWNS
:s|ooyos [e1oads

|00Y2S Jalieyd 0] Jajsuel)

Kepno rende) elol

anIasay [ende) 0} ysodaq 1saialu]
$80IAIBS UONONNSUOD pue uonisinbay sanijioed [e1o ]

Buipun] Yds Uo 92IA19S 198 10} JUBWISSASSY

S90IAIBS UONINIISUOD

S82IAIBS [B2IUYIS) puUe [euoissajoid paseyaind Jaylo
$82IAIBS U0NONNSU0D pue uonisinboy sanijioe

juawdinba ejo1

uonenodsuel] wepms - ‘puadx3 1sipun
"oe- [00Y2S 10 ‘WIe palinbay - ‘puadx3 1sipun
uononasuj - ‘puadx3 1sipun

uonanansu|

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ aun( papus JesA [edsld ay) Jo)
pun4 [ei1aus
a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng
101d1S1d TOOHOS 40 ddVvYH ANOLS 40 HONOdJ0o4d

65



620'920'T
(626'1)

800°TE0'T

225'0s¢
9Sv'T

000°05¢
902'59T
000°0vT

ve8'eze

zeL'ste

800'TE0'T Zve'v08 (000'st)

Zre'er8

$

zzLieTe

0v6°L00‘T 0v6°L00‘T

890'€C (865'€02) (000'st)

0v6°L00°T

(865'8ST)

[enoy 01 186png [eulq
(4an0)/18pun
YlIM aoueLIeA

[enioy 19b6png siajsuel|
[euid 196png

196png

[eulblo

(dvVv9) spun4 |[eluswulanos) lad aosuejeg punH
siseq dvv9O uo paziubodal jou uswAed piy a1eis 1se
((dVV9) Suawalels spun4 [elUSWUISA0S 0] UONeI|IoU0IaY

daoueleg pun4 paubisseun

S92URIQUINIUT IO} BNIBSDY

salnypuadx3 siea A uanbasqns Joj pareubisaqg
:90uejeg pun4 paubissy

aniasay Aouabiawg
anIasay [ende)d
9AI9SaY 9ouRUBURIN

:@oue[Rg PUNH PaNIWIWOD

salnipuadx3 siea A uanbasqgns loj pareubisag snjding ssaox3
sNn|dinS sS99X3 10} 9AISSDY

:90UR[Rg pUNH PaldlIISay

ooue[eg pund jo uone|midedsay
0€ aunr ‘saouefeg pund

T AInC ‘saouefeg pun4

sasn Buioueuly Jayio
pue salnjpuadxa (Japun) Jano sadinos Buloueuly

J3Y10 pue sanuanal Jo (Aoualolep) Ssadxg

T-O 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ |dunr papua Iea\ [edslH 8y} 1o}
pun4 [ei1aus
a|npayds uostedwo) Arelabpng

10141S1d TOOHOS 40ddVH IANOLS 40 HONOYO4d

66



(L02'2) 92¢'6¢ CEV'TE eEV'TE -

(£02'2) 260'82 662'0€ 662'0€ -

(£02'2) - 102'2 102'2 -

- 9T¥'CT 9T¥'2T 9Ty'CT -

- 9/9'ST 9/9'ST 9/9'ST -

- YET'T veET'T YET'T -

- YET'T veET'T YET'T - $

[enioy 01 [emoy 19bpng siajsuel| 18bpng

196png eui4 [eul4 196png reulblo
(4anO)/1epun

Yum aoueLIRA

SanuaAay [e10]
$82.N0S [eJapa} [e10 |
|ooyasaid “v'3'A’l
gued "v'3'al
welboid JuswanaIydy uoneonpd jeiny |ews
:$82IN0S [eJapa-
$82.IN0S [220] 210 ]

luel9 uspleo aledluely
S93IN0S [ed07]

‘S3INN3INTY

¢-0 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0€ dun(C papuad Jes [edslH 8y} Jo}
pun4 anuanay [elads
a|npayos uosuedwo) Arelabpng
10141S1d TOOHOS J09dVH INOLS 40 HONOHO4

67



- - - - - $

L02'2 9z2'62 €EV'TE EEV'TE -

1022 26082 662'0€ 662'0€ -

- 9/9'ST 9/9'ST 9/9'ST

L02'C 9T¥'2T €29'7T €291

- vET'T veT'T vET'T -

- vET'T veT'T vET'T

[en1oy 01 [enoy 19bpng slajsuel | 18bpng

196png eui4 [eul4 196png reulblo
(4anO)/1epun

Yum aoueLIRA

salnjipuadxa (Japun) Jano
sanuanal Jo (Aoualolap) ssaox3

sainupuadx3 [e1o1
Aepno rendeo elo]

uawdinb3 jeuononJisu|
AepnQ [ended

S92IAIBS 1oddns [e10 |

so||ddns |eJjausao
S9JIAISS [2IIUYI] pUE [BUOISSBJ0Id paseydind Jaylo
S92IAI9S 1oddng

uononnsul [eo |

so||ddns |eJjausao
S9JIAIAS [e2IUYD3] pUB [BUOISSBJ0Id paseydind
S92IAIaS paseyaind Jaylo
:uononsu|
'STANLIANIdX3

¢-0 119IHX3

9T0Z ‘0OE auN[ papua JeaA [edslH ayl 10}
pun4 anuanay [elads
a|npayos uosuedwo) Arelabpng

10141S1d TOOHOS 40ddVH INOLS 40 HONOdJO4

68



BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Note A - Explanation of Difference between Budgetary Inflows and
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General
Fund

EXHIBIT C-3

Special
Revenue

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the budgetary $ 3,185,900
comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized

Prior year
Current year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 4,979

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (4,979)

29,226

Total revenues reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds 3,185,900

29,226

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule 3,169,203

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies
are received for financial reporting purposes
Prior year
Current year

29,226

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds $ 3,169,203

29,226
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Public Employee Retirement System
Last Three Fiscal Years

2015 2014 2013

District's proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) 0.0016612157% 0.0016022842% 0.1884589900%
District's proportionate of the net pension

liability (asset) $ 340,803 $ 299,991 $ 360,183
District's covered payroll $ 146,513 $ 114,350 $ 101,934
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 232.61% 262.34% 353.35%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability 47.93% 52.08% 48.72%

Source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement System; District records

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to be show information for a 10 year period.
However, information is only currently available for three years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of District Contributions
Public Employee Retirement System
Last Three Fiscal Years

2015 2014 2013

Contractually required contribution $ 13,209 $ 14,200 14,305
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution 13,209 14,200 14,305
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - -
District's covered-employee payroll $ 146,513 $ 114,350 101,934
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 9.02% 12.42% 14.03%

Source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement System; District records

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to be show information for a 10 year period.

However, information is only currently available for three years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
Last Three Fiscal Years

2015 2014 2013

District's proportion of the net pension

liability (asset) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
District's proportionate of the net pension

liability (asset) $ - $ - $ -
State's proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) associated with the District 5,350,407 5,381,934 5,159,698
Total $ 5,350,407 $ 5,381,934 $ 5,159,698
District's covered payroll $ 990,706 $ 976,233 $ 1,027,060
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability 28.71% 33.64% 33.76%

Source: GASB 68 report on Public Employees' Retirement System; District records
Note: This schedule is required by GASB 68 to be show information for a 10 year period.

However, information is only currently available for three years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Capital Projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities and equipment purchases other than those financed
by proprietary funds.
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Exhibit F-2

BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources
School Construction Corporation Grant $ -
Miscellaneous $ -

Total revenue -

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services -

Construction Services 12,351
Total expenditures 12,351
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (12,351)

Other Financing Sources/(Uses)

Transfers in (6,371)
Fund balance - beginning 18,722
Fund balance - ending $ -
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT

Capital

Projects Fund

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance,
and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Window Replacement Project

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources
School Development Authority
Bond proceeds and transfers
Transfers from General Fund

Total revenue

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services
Construction services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Additional project information:
Project number
Grant date
Bond authorization date
Bond authorized
Bonds issued
Original authorized cost
Additional authorized cost
Revised authorized cost

Percentage increase over original cost
Percentage completion

Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

Exhibit F-2a

Revised

Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals Cost

$ 146,801 - 146,801 146,801
252,959 (6,371) 246,588 246,588
399,760 (6,371) 393,389 393,389
38,889 - 38,889 38,889
342,149 12,351 354,500 354,500
381,038 12,351 393,389 393,389

$ 18,722 (18,722)

5060-050-13-3001
7/25/14
N/A
N/A
N/A
393,389

393,389

0%
100%
10/31/14
N/A
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Trust funds are used to account for gifts and bequests to the school district
for a specific purpose.

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund -
This is an expendable trust fund used to pay unemployment
compensation insurance claims.

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the school district as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other
funds.

Agency Funds - This agency funds are
used to account for the payroll transactions of the school district
and student activity funds

Scholarship Fund - This fund is an
expendable trust fund to provide for scholarships for district
students
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT H-2

Unemployment
Compensation Scholarship

Trust Fund Total
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Plan Members $ 1,573 1,573
Total Contributions 1,573 - 1,573
Investment Earnings
Interest 16 - 16
Net investment earnings 16 - 16
Total additions 1,589 - 1,589
DEDUCTIONS:

Unemployment Claims 124 124
Total deductions 124 - 124
Change in net position 1,465 - 1,465
Net Position, July 1 38,342 2,105 40,447
Net Position, June 30 $ 39,807 2,105 41,912
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT H-3

Balance Cash Cash Balance
June 30, 2015 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2016
Petty Cash Account $ 2,447 2,447
School fund account 664 2,288 2,445 507
Total Liabilities $ 3,111 2,288 2,445 2,954
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2016

EXHIBIT H-4

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Net Payroll
Payroll deductions and witholdings
Interfunds payable

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance
June 30, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
$ 25,059 1,262,893 1,284,433 3,519

25,059 1,262,893 1,284,433 3,519

- 671,769 671,769 -

24,446 591,109 612,664 2,891

613 15 - 628

$ 25,059 1,262,893 1,284,433 3,519
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Statistical Section

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires 10 years of
statistical information to be included in the CAFR. However, due to the
change in the statistical requirements, information was unavailable for all 10 years.
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J-5
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Fiscal Year Interest on
Ended June 30, Investments Misc. Total

2007 28,037 1,647 29,684
2008 10,374 614 10,988
2009 8,778 2,992 11,770
2010 - 5,740 5,740
2011 100 12,662 12,762
2012 200 8,091 8,291
2013 719 126,123 126,842
2014 18 100,985 101,003
2015 463 1,188 1,651
2016 427 15,731 16,158

Source: District Records
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Rate per $100 of Assessed Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT Overlapping Rates
General Borough Total Direct and
Obligation Debt of Stone Cape May  Overlapping Tax
Basic Rate * Service” Total Direct Harbor County Rate
Fiscal
Year
Ended
June 30,
2007 0.053 0.002 0.055 0.206 0.249 0.510
2008 0.057 - 0.057 0.218 0.254 0.529
2009 0.049 - 0.049 0.190 0.224 0.463
2010 0.052 - 0.052 0.198 0.223 0.473
2011 0.051 - 0.051 0.202 0.226 0.479
2012 0.051 - 0.051 0.216 0.235 0.502
2013 0.053 - 0.053 0.224 0.232 0.509
2014 0.056 - 0.056 0.232 0.230 0.518
2015 0.055 - 0.055 0.239 0.231 0.525
2016 0.056 - 0.056 0.239 0.240 0.535

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other components
of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth limitation calculation.
a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net valuation taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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J-9
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year Collections
Year Taxes Levied of the Levy in
Ended for the Fiscal Percentage Subsequent
June 30, Year Amount of Levy Years

2007 2,025,910 2,025,910 100%

2008 1,969,219 1,969,219 100%

2009 2,047,988 2,047,988 100%

2010 2,129,907 2,129,907 100%

2011 2,215,103 2,215,103 100%

2012 2,215,104 2,215,104 100%

2013 2,259,406 2,259,406 100%

2014 2,349,594 2,304,594 98% 45,000
2015 2,396,585 2,396,585 100%

2016 2,396,585 2,396,585 100%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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J-11
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value # of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita °

2007 - - 0.000%
2008 - - 0.000%
2009 - - 0.000%
2010 - - 0.000%
2011 - - 0.000%
2012 - - 0.000%
2013 - - 0.000%
2014 - - 0.000%
2015 - - 0.000%
2016 - - 0.000%

No Debt for past 10 Years

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-13.
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J-14
BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Personal
Income Per Capita
(thousands of Personal Unemployment

Year Population dollars) Income © Rate®
2007 1,039 46,090 44,360 4.90%
2008 1,023 47,822 46,747 6.00%
2009 1,017 46,787 46,005 8.70%
2010 1,016 48,258 47,498 8.70%
2011 866 41,133 47,498 9.10%
2012 860 40,848 47,498 9.50%
2013 854 41,585 48,694 10.30%
2014 847 44,278 52,276 11.20%
2015 844 45,519 53,932 10.30%
2016 836 43,315 51,812 8.90%

Source:

a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development

b Personal income provided by the US Dept. of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.

¢ Per Capita information provided by the US Dept. of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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J-20

BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR BOARD OF EDUCATION

Insurance Schedule
June 30, 2016

Unaudited
Coverage *° Deductible
School package Policy - New Jersey School Board
Association Insurance Group
Property- Blanket Building & Contents $ 5,380,300 1,000
Comprehensive General Liability 11,000,000
Comprehensive Automobile Liability 11,000,000
Comprehensive Crime Coverage 50,000 500
Electronic Data Processing Equipment 275,000 1,000
Blanket Extra Expense 50,000,000 1,000
Blanket Valuable Papers and Records 10,000,000 1,000
Employee Benefits Liability 11,000,000 1,000
Cyber Liability 1,000,000 1,000
Environmental Liability 1,000,000 1,000
Equipment Breakdown 100,000,000 1,000
Loss of Business Income/Tuition 846,000 1,000
Workers' Compensation - New Jersey School Board
Association Insurance Group statutory
School Board Legal Liability - New Jersey School Board
Association Insurance Group
Errors and Omissions Policy 11,000,000
Flood Insurance - New Jersey School Board
Building 1,000,000 500,000
Contents 1,000,000 500,000

Source: District Records

a - Coverage includes all schools covered by the New Jersey School Board

Insurance Group.
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PR
FORD- SCOTT

& ASSOCIATES, L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1535 HAVEN AVENUE « OCEAN CITY, NJ - 08226
PHONE 609.399.6333 « FAX 609.399.3710
www.ford-scott.com

Independent Auditor’'s Report

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Stone Harbor School District
County of Cape May, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Borough of Stone Harbor School District, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Borough of Stone Harbor School District’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 21, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Borough of Stone Harbor School District’s control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Stone Harbor School
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fond, Scott & ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Wickael S. Gancia

Michael S. Garcia

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 2080

October 21, 2016
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Borough of Stone Harbor School District
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30, 2016

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance include federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Borough
of Stone Harbor School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the
Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from
federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance
passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is described
in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The District has elected not to use
the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a
GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for
the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal
compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be
recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized
until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual
basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last two state aid payments in
the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97 (A3521). For
GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to
the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent year.
The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also
recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.

The net adjustment to reconcile from budgetary basis to GAAP basis is $168,969 for the
general fund, $0 for the special revenue fund and $0 for the capital projects fund. See
the following schedule and Schedule C-3 for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to
the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial
statements on a GAAP basis as follows:
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Borough of Stone Harbor School District

Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance

June 30, 2016

General
Fund

Total

State Assistance:

Actual amounts (budgetary)

“revenues” from the Schedule

of Expenditures of State

Financial Assistance $120,138

Difference — budget to “GAAP”

State aid payment recognized

for GAAP statements in the

current year, previously

recognized for budgetary

purposes 4,979

State aid payment recognized

for budgetary purposes, not

recognized for GAAP

statements until the subsequent

year. (4,979)

On Behalf TPAF payments

recognized for GAAP

statements

not included in the Schedule of
Expenditures of State Financial

Assistance 168,969

120,138

4,979

(4,979)

168,969

Total State revenue as reported

on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in

fund balances $ 289,107

$ 289,107
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Borough of Stone Harbor School District
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30, 2016

Special Revenue
Fund Total

Federal Assistance:

Actual amounts (budgetary)

"revenues" from the Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 28,092 28,092

Difference - budget to "GAAP"
Grant accounting budgetary
basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized. - -

Total Federal revenue as reported
on the statement of revenue,

expenditures, and changes in fund
balances $ 28,092 28,092

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in
the related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5. OTHER

The amounts reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by
the State on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2016. TPAF Social
Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the
employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended

June 30, 2016.
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Part | -- Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statement Section
Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified

Type of auditor's report on compliance for
major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Uniform Guidance

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

EXHIBIT K-6

Unmodified
yes no
yes none reported
yes no
Not Applicable
yes no
yes none reported
yes no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

yes

no
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BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Part | -- Summary of Auditor's Results
State Awards Section Not Applicable
Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes no

2) Significant deficiencies identified yes none reported

Type of auditor's report on compliance for
major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance NJOMB Circular
Letter 15-087? yes no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

N)  Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs:

0O) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes no
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EXHIBIT K-6

BOROUGH OF STONE HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

NONE

Part 3 — Schedule of State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

NONE

EXHIBIT K-7

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

NONE
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